AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

THE BOROUGH OF LODI

AND

THE POLICEMEN'S BENEVOLENT ASSOCIATION, LOCAL 26 (LODI UNIT)

JULY 1, 1993 THROUGH JUNE 30, 1996

LOCCKE & CORREIA P.A. 24 SALEM STREET HACKENSACK, NEW JERSEY 07601 (201) 488-0880

TABLE OF CONTENTS

_ARTICLE		PAGE
•	PREAMBLE	1
1	EMPLOYEES' BASIC RIGHTS	2
2	EXCLUSIVITY OF ASSOCIATION REPRESENTATION	3
3	AGENCY SHOP	4
4	EXISTING LAWS	5
5	ASSOCIATION RECOGNITION	6
6	ASSOCIATION REPRESENTATIVES	7
7	RIGHTS OF EMPLOYEES	8
8	DATA FOR FUTURE BARGAINING	11
9	SALARIBS	12
10	WORK DAY, WORK WEEK AND OVERTIME	13
11	HOURLY RATE	14
12	COURT TIME	15
13	TRAINING PAY	16
14	RECALL	17
15	PRIORITY FOR OVERTIME	18
16	SHIFT CHANGES	19
17	LONGEVITY	20
18	UNIFORMS	21
19	PBA REPRESENTATION	23
20	VACATIONS	24
21	HOLIDAYS	26
22	SICK LEAVE	28
23	WORK INCURRED INJURY	31
24	BEREAVEMENT LEAVE	33
25	LEAVE OF ABSENCE	34
26	MEDICAL COVERAGE	35
27	INSURANCE	37
28	LIFE INSURANCE	38
29	BULLETIN BOARD	39
30	CEREMONIAL ACTIVITIES	40

31 LEGAL RXPENSES 32 PERSONNEL FILES 33 MILITARY LEAVE	41 42 43 44 45
	43 44
22 MILTTARY LEAVE	44
3.3 traverset m	
34 PENSION	45
35 GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	43
36 SAVINGS CLAUSE	47
37 OFF-DUTY POLICE ACTION	48
38 AMENDMENT OF LAW	49
39 MILEAGE ALLOWANCE	50
40 MATERNITY LEAVES	51
41 SAFETY AND HEALTH	53
42 PERSONAL DAYS	54
43 YEARLY CALENDAR	55
44 NO WAIVER	56
45 UNIFORM REGULATIONS	57
46 POLICE VEHICLES	58
47 SENIORITY	59
48 IN-SERVICE TRAINING	60
49 JOINT PBA - MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE	61
50 PAST PRACTICE CLAUSE	62
51 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS	63
52 OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT ACTIVITIES	65
53 POLICE SERVICES	66
54 TERM OF CONTRACT	67
APPENDIX A	68
APPENDIX B	69

PREAMBLE

This AGREMENT, made by and between the BOROUGH OF LODI, a body politic and corporate of the State of New Jersey, hereinafter referred to as the "Employer", and THE POLICEMEN'S BENEVOLENT ASSOCIATION, LOCAL 26, (Lodi Unit) hereinafter referred to as the "PBA";

WHEREAS, the Employer and the PBA recognize that it will be to the benefit of both to promote mutual understanding and foster a harmonious relationship between the parties to the end that continuous and efficient service will be rendered to and by both parties,

NOW, THEREFORE, it is agreed as follows:

EMPLOYEES' BASIC RIGHTS

- A. Pursuant to Chapter 303, Public Laws 1968, the Employer hereby agrees that every employee shall have the right freely to organize, join and support the PBA and its affiliates for the purpose of engaging in collective negotiations and other concerted activities for mutual aid and protection. As a body exercising governmental power under the Laws of the State of New Jersey, the Employer undertakes and agrees that it shall not directly or indirectly discourage or deprive or coerce any employee in the enjoyment of any right conferred by Chapter 303, Public Laws 1968, or other Laws of New Jersey or the Constitution of New Jersey and of the United States.
- B. The Employer further agrees that it shall not discriminate against any employees with respect to hours, wages or any terms or conditions of employment by reason of his membership in the PBA and its affiliates, collective negotiations with the employer or his institution of any grievance, complaint or proceeding under this Agreement or otherwise with respect to any terms or conditions of employment, as prescribed by the Statutes of the State of New Jersey.

EXCLUSIVITY OF ASSOCIATION REPRESENTATION

A. The employer agrees that it will not enter into any contract or Memorandum of Agreement with any one but the recognized Association (PBA Local 26, Lodi Unit) only with regard to the categories of personnel covered by the said Memorandum of Agreement during the terms of this Agreement.

AGENCY SHOP

Any permanent employee in the bargaining unit on the effective date of this Agreement who does not join the Union within thirty (30) days thereafter, any new permanent employee who does not join within thirty (30) days of the initial employment within the unit, and any permanent employee previously employed, within the unit who does not join within ten (10) days of reentry into employment with the unit shall, as a condition of employment pay a Representation Fee to the Union. The Representation Fee shall be in an amount equal to eighty-five (85%) percent of the regular Union membership dues, fees, and assessments as certified by the Union. The Union may revise its certification of the amount of the Representation fee at any time to reflect changes in the regular Union membership dues, fees and assessments. The Union's entitlement to the Representation fee shall continue beyond the termination date of this Agreement so long as the Union remains the majority representative of the employees in the unit, provided that no modification is made in this provision by a successor agreement between the Union and the employer.

EXISTING LAWS

A. The provisions of this Agreement shall be subject to and subordinate to, and shall not annul or modify existing applicable provisions of State or Federal Laws.

ASSOCIATION RECOGNITION

- A. The employer recognizes PBA Local 26 (Lodi Unit) only as the exclusive bargaining representative for the purpose of collective negotiations with respect to all negotiable items of employment of all employees employed by the employer's Police Department except those employees specifically excluded herein, Police Director or Chief, and all non-police employees.
- B. The term "Police Officer" or "employee" as used herein shall be defined to include the plural as well as the singular and to include females as well as males, and shall apply to members of the police force covered by this Agreement.
- C. The employer and the Union agree that there shall be no discrimination against any employee because of age, race, creed, color, religion, marital status, sex, national origin or political affiliation.
- D. The employer and the Union agree that all Employees covered under the Agreement have the right without fear of penalty or reprisal to form, join, and assist any employee organization or to refrain from any such activity. There shall be no discrimination by the employer or the Union against any employee because of the employee's membership or non-membership or activity or non-activity in the Union.

ASSOCIATION REPRESENTATIVES

- A. The employer recognizes the right of the Association to designate Representatives within the Department and alternates for the enforcement of this Agreement, provided they are members of the Lodi Police Department or their attorneys.
- B. The Association shall furnish the employer in writing the names of the representative and the alternates and notify the employer of any changes.
- c. The authority of the representative and alternates so designated by the Association shall be limited to, and shall not exceed, the following duties and activities.
 - The investigation and presentation of grievances in accordance with the provisions of the Collective Bargaining Agreement.
 - 2. The transmission of such messages and information which shall originate with, and are authorized by the Association and its officers.
- D. The designated association representatives shall be granted time with pay during working hours to investigate and seek to settle grievances but not including disciplinary matters. The Police Director or Chief shall grant reasonable time for the aforesaid activities, and to attend negotiating sessions and all other meetings or sessions which might affect the rights and/or obligations of any member.

RIGHTS OF EMPLOYEES

- A. Members of the force hold a unique status as public Officers in that the nature of their office and employment involves the exercise of a portion of the police power of the municipality.
- B. The security of the community depends to a great extent on the manner in which Police Officers perform their duty, and their employment is thus in the nature of a public trust.
- C. The wide ranging powers and duties given to the Department and its members involve them in all manner of contacts and relationships with the public.
- D. Out of these contacts may come questions concerning the actions of the members of the force.
- E. These questions may require investigation by superior officers designated by the Police Director or Chief and the governing body.
- F. In an effort to insure that these investigations are conducted in a manner which is conducive to good order and discipline, the following rules are hereby adopted:
 - (1) The interrogation of a member of the force shall be at a reasonable hour, preferably when the member of the force is on duty, unless the exigencies of the investigation dictate otherwise, in which event reassignment of the member of the force should be employed. (if any time is lost, the member of the force shall be

compensated). When it arises out of a work situation or police matter, interrogation shall be handled on Borough time.

- (2) The interrogation shall take place at a location designated by the Police Director or Chief. Usually it will be at police Headquarters or the location where the incident allegedly occurred.
- (3) Sufficient information to reasonably apprise the members of the allegations should be provided. If it is known that the member of the force is being interrogated as a witness only, he should be so informed at the initial contact.
- (4) The questioning shall be reasonable in length. Reasonable respites shall be allowed. Time shall also be provided for personal necessities, meals, telephone calls, and rest periods as are reasonably necessary.
- (5) The members of the force shall not be subject to any offensive language, nor shall he be threatened with transfer, dismissal or other disciplinary punishment. No promise of reward shall be made as an inducement to answering questions.
- (6) The complete interrogation of the member of the force shall be recorded mechanically or by a department stenographer at the request of the

member or interrogator. There will be no "off the record" questions. All recesses called during the questioning shall be recorded.

(7) If a member of the force is under arrest or is likely to be, that is, if he is a suspect or the target of a criminal investigation, he shall be given his rights pursuant to the current decisions of the United States Supreme Court.

DATA FOR FUTURE BARGAINING

- A. The employer agrees to make available to the Association all relevant data the Association may require to bargain collectively, which data shall be contained in the official records of the Borough.
- B. The relevant data noted above shall include but shall not be limited to such items as salaries and benefits enjoyed by other Borough employee groups, the cost of various insurance and other programs, information concerning overtime worked by Employees, the total number of sick leave days utilized by employees, the total number of injuries on duty, the total length of time lost as a result of injuries on duty and other data of a similar nature.
- C. The Borough shall incur no additional expense by virtue of this Article. This Article shall not apply to any attorney-client work product.

SALARIES

- A. The base pay for all employees covered by this contract shall be as set forth on Appendix A annexed.
- B. All employees currently on staff as of the date of the signing of this contract shall be entitled to step movement on July 1 of each year succeeding the year in which the employee was appointed. All employees currently on staff as of the date of the signing of this Agreement will therefore advance six (6) months earlier than they would have advanced under the Step movement procedure in the proceeding contract.
- c. Employees having completed twenty (20) years of service would be entitled to said benefit. The benefit would be an increase in the base pay rate by an amount equal to one-half (1/2) the difference between the Employee's then current base rate and the next higher rate of pay. For example, a Patrolman having completed twenty (20) years of service would receive a Patrolman's pay expanded by one-half (1/2) the difference between the Patrolman's base rate and the Sergeant's base rate of pay. This procedure for calculating Senior Officer Differential as an expansion of base pay shall be calculated for each rank differential in the salary structure. Captains shall be paid a Senior Officer Differential which is calculated by averaging the percentage value of Senior Officer Differentials between all other ranks (Patrolman to Sergeant, Sergeant to Lieutenant, and Lieutenant to Captain).

WORK DAY, WORK WEEK AND OVERTIME

- A. The normal work day tour shall be eight (8) hours, which shall include forty-five (45) minutes in addition to fifteen (15) minutes coffee break prior to the meal period and a fifteen (15) minute coffee break subsequent to meal time per day, which shall be taken pursuant to present practice including the obligation to respond to all calls.
- B. The present work schedule and method of selecting RDO's shall continue in full force and effect during the term of this Agreement.
- C. The normal work day shall be based upon the utilization of a three squad system which shall function for eight (8) hours for each squad during a twenty-four (24) hour day.
- D. Overtime shall be paid by the following rules: It shall be paid as paid overtime compensation (time and one-half the straight time hourly rate).

HOURLY RATE

A. To compute the base hourly rate for overtime for other purposes, the Employee's established base salary shall be divided by 2080 hours.

COURT TIME

- A. Court time, as referred to in this Article, shall consist of all time, excluding regular tours of duty, during which any Police Officer covered under this Agreement shall be required to attend a Municipal Court, County Court, Superior court, Grand Jury proceeding, or other courts or Administrative Bodies.
- B. All such required court time shall be considered as overtime and shall be compensated at time and one-half.
- c. When a Police Officer covered under this Agreement shall be required to travel to and from any of the Courts or Administrative Bodies as noted in this Article, such travel time shall be considered and included in the computation of the amount of overtime to which the employee is entitled, provided, however, that such travel time shall be computed between the Employer's police headquarters and the pertinent court or administrative body.
- p. The amount of overtime to which a Police Officer may be entitled under this Article shall be the actual time required including waiting time in the Court or Administrative Body, together with any applicable travel time, provided, however, that the Employee's entitlement to overtime under this Article shall not be less than three (3) hours of overtime pay so long as court time is not contiguous with the regular day, that is, the court appearance does not continue into the regular tour of duty.

TRAINING PAY

A. The employer agrees to compensate all Police Officers covered by this Agreement at time and one-half rate for attending training courses on their own time which courses are state or municipality mandated or approved.

RECALL

A. Any employee who is called back to work after having completed his regularly scheduled shift shall be compensated at time and one-half the straight time hourly rate of pay with a minimum guarantee of four (4) hours work or pay in lieu thereof.

PRIORITY FOR OVERTIME

- A. Overtime for regularly scheduled shifts and details will be offered in an order of preference based upon a rotating seniority roster.
- B. The purpose of this section is to equalize overtime among employees and same shall not be defeated by the employer's selection of special persons within the unit for special details as set forth herein.

SHIFT CHANGES

A. The employer agrees that it will not unreasonably adjust shifts so as to avoid overtime payment to employees covered by this Agreement and shift changes shall not occur without giving affected employees seventy-two (72) hours notice.

LONGEVITY

In addition to all wages and other benefits, each employee shall be entitled to longevity payment which shall be paid at the rate of two (2%) percent of base salary for every four years of service based upon the employee's current base salary, with a maximum of twelve (12%) percent.

UNIFORMS

- A. Each new employee shall receive from the employer, free of charge in lieu of a clothing allowance, a complete uniform.
- B. Thereafter, the employer will pay each employee, the sum of Five Hundred Fifty (\$550.00) Dollars per year as a clothing and maintenance allowance which shall be payable in July of each year.
- C. This payment shall be made to plainclothed as well as uniformed employees.
- D. If the employer decides to change the uniform or any part thereof, it shall provide to each employee, free of charge, any such changed items.
- B. Utilization of Section D shall not diminish the clothing allowance set forth in this Agreement except if a complete new uniform is issued in any calendar year.
- F. Any employee's uniform or personal equipment which are required by him in his capacity as a Police Officer, which may be damaged as a result of a single episode during the course of his employment, shall be replaced at the expense of the employer, with the approval of the Police Director or Chief, except which such damage is caused by the negligence of the employee.
- G. Any such payments made under Section F shall be in addition to the employee's annual clothing allowance otherwise referred to in

this Agreement and shall be made to the Employee within thirty (30) days of reporting same.

H. In addition, the employer shall purchase and furnish a new Officer one hand gun which shall be in reasonably satisfactory condition. Said gun shall be returned to the employer upon the termination of the Officer's employment.

PBA REPRESENTATION

A. The employer agrees to grant the necessary time off without loss of pay to one member of the PBA or his alternate selected by the members of the PBA as delegate to attend any State or National Convention of the New Jersey Policemen's Benevolent Association. Further, the employer agrees to grant the necessary time off without loss of pay to the PBA representative duly designated as the State delegate to attend the monthly State PBA meeting, Bergen County Conference Meetings and Conventions.

VACATIONS

A. The Vacation Allowance shall be as follows for Officers and Supervisors:

1 to 4 years of service	11 working days
Start of 5th year of service	15 working days
Start of 10th year of service	20 working days
Start of 15th year of service	25 working days
Start of 20th year of service	30 working days

- B. When in any calendar year, the vacation or any part thereof is not granted by reason of pressure of police activity, such vacation periods not granted shall accumulate and shall be granted during the next succeeding year at the approval of the Police Director or Chief.
- c. If an employee is on vacation and becomes sufficiently ill so as to require hospitalization for four (4) days or more, he may have such period of illness and post-hospital recuperation period charged against sick leave at his option upon proof of hospitalization and physician's certificate.
- D. No employee who is on vacation shall be recalled except in a case of full mobilization of the Department by the Police Director or Chief, to meet a clear and present danger confronting the Borough.

- E. Vacation shall be selected on a rotating seniority basis which shall be established by the Department. Vacations are to be selected and posted within the schedule pursuant to present practice.
 - F. Vacation shall be pro rated during first year of service.

HOLIDAYS

- A. Each employee shall be compensated with Thirteen (13) paid holidays per year to be utilized in the same calendar year unless the Chief permits them to be carried over. Holiday time off shall be at the employee's sole discretion subject to prior departmental approval.
- B. If the Governing Body declares, not through collective negotiations, any other day to be a holiday in addition to the thirteen (13) holidays set forth herein, employees shall be entitled to such holidays:
 - 1. New Year's Day
 - 2. Lincoln's Birthday
 - 3. Washington's Birthday
 - 4. Good Friday
 - 5. Memorial Day
 - 6. Independence Day
 - 7. Labor Day
 - 8. Columbus Day
 - 9. Election Day
 - 10. Veteran's Day
 - 11. Thanksgiving Day
 - 12. Christmas Day
 - 13. Martin Luther King Day

C. Each employee covered by this Agreement shall have the individual option to sell back to the employer up to three holidays per calendar year. If the employee elects to sell up to three holidays back to the employer then said employee shall receive paid compensation equivalent to such holidays as are sold back calculated at the overtime rate and those "sold" holidays will be deducted from the employee's existing days left. If the employee elects to sell back any holidays then notice shall be given to the employer not later than May 1 of the calendar year. Where such election is made by the employee, the employer shall pay the employee the appropriate amount within ninety (90) calendar days of said notice.

SICK LEAVE

- A. The present practice and policy with regard to accumulated sick leave time, whereby each employee is entitled to fifteen (15) days per year for calculation purposes, shall continue in full force and effect.
- B. In addition to the foregoing, and in accordance with the provisions of law governing sick leave for Police Personnel contained in N.J.S.A. 40A:14-137, every officer shall be granted up to one (1) year sick leave, not related to accumulated sick days which are hereby expressly authorized.
- C. If an officer is out sick for more than seven (7) days, or injured and under doctor's care he will not be required to remain in his home if the doctor feels it is not necessary for his recuperation; but he will let the Desk Officer know where he can be reached. The Department Head may direct the employee to the Borough designated Physician for an opinion as to the eligibility of the employee to be absent from work.
- D. If an officer lives alone or becomes ill or injured while not at home, he will notify the Desk Officer as to where he will be staying.
- E. Sick leave may be used by an Officer for personal illness or injury or a member of his family or household which requires his attendance upon the person who is ill or injured or which requires his

being quarantined by a physician because of a disease which is certified by the local Health Department of the jurisdiction where the Officer resides as being a contagious disease. Sick leave is hereby defined to mean absence from post or duty because of illness, accident or exposure to a contagious disease requiring isolation.

- F. Notwithstanding any of the above provisions, the employer reserves the right to have an Officer examined by a physician, designated by the employer after a period of ninety (90) days from the date of his disability if the Officer is disabled and the likelihood of the officer being able to return to duty is questionable based on the determination of the Borough Manager, Police Director or Chief.
- G. If the physician appointed by the employer to examine the disabled officer determines that the Officer will never be able to return to duty, the officer or his legal guardian shall be required to apply for disability retirement in accordance with the provisions of either the Police & Fire Retirement System.
- H. Habitual absenteeism or tardiness may be cause for discipline.
- I. Any Employee who calls in sick to engage in outside employment shall be subject to disciplinary action.
- J. If an employee is absent from work for reasons that entitle him to sick leave, the Department Head or his designated representative shall be notified as early as possible, but not later than one hour prior to the start of the scheduled work shift from which he is absent barring extenuating circumstances. Failure to so notify the Department Head or his designated representative may be

cause for denial of the use of sick leave for the absence and constitute cause for disciplinary action. An employee who is absent for five (5) consecutive days or more and who does not notify the Department Head or some other reasonable representative of the Borough on any of the first five (5) days may be subject to dismissal barring extenuating circumstances.

WORK INCURRED INJURY

- A. Where an employee covered under this Agreement suffers a work-connected injury or disability, the Employer shall continue such employee at full pay, during the continuance of such employee's inability to work. During this period of time, all temporary disability benefits accruing under the provisions of the Workers' Compensation Act shall be paid over to the employer.
- B. The employee shall be required to present evidence by a certificate of a responsible physician that he is unable to work, and the employer may reasonably require employees to visit the Borough's designated Physician.
- c. In the event the employee contends that he is entitled to a period of disability beyond the period established by the treating physician, or a physician employed by the employer or by its insurance carrier, then, and in that event, the burden shall be upon the employee to establish such additional period of disability by obtaining a judgment in the Division of Workers' Compensation, or, if there is an appeal therefrom, by the final decision of the last reviewing court shall be binding upon the parties.
- D. For the purpose of this Article, injury or illness incurred while the employee is acting in any employer authorized activity, shall be considered in the line of duty.

E. Employees who are injured while working must make a report within a reasonable period of time thereof to their Department Head.

BEREAVEMENT LEAVE

- A. All permanent full-time Employees covered by this Agreement shall be entitled to three (3) days leave with pay from the day of death or day of the funeral of a member of his immediate family.
- B. Immediate family shall include spouse, children, parents, brothers, sisters and grandparents of employee or spouse.
- C. Such funeral leave shall not be charged against the employee's vacation or sick leave.
- D. Any extension of absence under this article, however, may be at the employee's option and with the consent of the Department Head, be charged against available vacation time or be taken without pay for a reasonable period.
- E. Reasonable verification of event may be required by the employer.

LEAVE OF ABSENCE

- A. All permanent full-time employees covered by this Agreement may be granted a leave of absence without pay for a period of six (6) months.
- B. The employee shall submit in writing all facts bearing on the requests to the Police Director or the Chief who shall append his recommendations and forward his request to the Borough Manager.
- C. The Borough Manager shall consider each request on its merits and without establishing a precedent. The employer will not unreasonably deny any employee's request for a leave of absence.
- D. This leave is subject to renewal for reasons of personal illness, disability or other reasons deemed proper and approved by the employer. Normally, it shall be granted only when the employee has used his accumulated sick and vacation leave in the case of illness or his vacation leave if leave without pay is requested for reasons other than illness.
- E. At the expiration of such leave, the employee shall be returned to the position from which he is on leave.
 - G. Seniority shall be retained.

MEDICAL COVERAGE

- A. (1) The employer will continue to provide and pay for the existing medical coverage.
- (2) In addition to the coverage for active members, the employer shall provide the health insurance coverage herein for retired members effective upon retirement until the retired Police Office qualifies for medicare or his provided medical insurance through other employment.
- B. The employer will maintain the presently effective full family dental program for each employee covered by this Agreement.

 Annexed hereto as Exhibit 1.
- C. The employer will maintain the currently effective family prescription program (\$1.00 co-payment) for each employee covered by this Agreement. Annexed hereto as Exhibit 2.
- D. All increases in premiums during the term of this Agreement shall be born entirely by the Employer.
- E. The employer will provide, at its expense, the influenza inoculations to be given to all officers by the Employer.
- F. The employer shall provide an eye care program as is defined at Appendix B annexed.
- G. The parties agree that there shall be no changes in future medical coverages until there has been negotiation on the subject. The employer shall provide advanced notice of any intended change together with sufficient information so that the PBA can evaluate said

proposed change. The PBA shall then promptly meet and negotiate with the public employer as to the proposed change.

H. The employer shall provide for Hepatitis B inoculations for employees in the bargaining unit.

INSURANCE

- A. The employer will either indemnify or will continue to provide existing insurance coverage to employees covered under this Agreement, protecting them from civil suits arising out of the performance of their duties including but not limited to the following: false arrest, malicious prosecution, libel, slander, defamation of character, violation of the right of privacy, invasion of the right of privileged occupancy.
- B. The employer will also pay the reasonable fees of any attorney selected by said employee, or any body, and interest on the judgment which any employee may be charged or obligated to pay as a result of any civil and/or criminal charges against the employee by reason of their performance of his duties for the employer as required by statute.

LIFE INSURANCE

A. The employer will provide, at its own expense and cost and without cost to the employee, a life insurance policy in the face amount equal to one times each employee's base salary.

BULLETIN BOARD

- A. The employer will supply one bulletin board for the use of the Association to be placed in a conspicuous location.
- B. The bulletin board shall be for the use of the Association for the posting of notices and bulletins pertaining to the Association business and activities or matters dealing with the welfare of employees.
- C. No matter may be posted without receiving permission of the officially designated Association representative and the Police Director or Chief.
- D. The Director or Chief shall not unreasonably withhold permission for posting.

CEREMONIAL ACTIVITIES

- A. In the event a Police Officer in another department in the State of New Jersey is killed in the line of duty, the employer will permit at least two (2) uniformed Police Officers of the Department to participate in funeral services for the deceased officer.
- B. Subject to the availability of same the employer will permit a department police vehicle to be utilized by the members in the funeral service.
- C. Police Officers participating in such funeral service shall not be entitled to any compensation during the time in which they are participating in said funeral services unless otherwise agreed to by the Police Director or Chief or the Borough Manager but without setting a precedent.

LEGAL EXPENSES

- A. If an officer is charged with violation of the law as a result of acts committed by him in the course of performing his duties, the officer shall select an attorney to provide legal service to defend him, which attorney shall be reasonably satisfactory to the Employer, in accordance with the provisions of N.J.S.A. 40A:14-155. The PBA shall submit a list of three (3) attorneys from which the public employer shall select one.
- B. Officers shall also be permitted to retain an attorney to defend a civil action to which he is a party as a result of an act committed by him during the course of performing his duty.

PERSONNEL FILES

- A. A separate personal history file shall be established and maintained for each employee covered by this Agreement; personal history files are confidential records and shall be maintained in the office of the Police Director or Chief.
- B. A member of the Police Department may, by appointment, review his personal file and this appointment for review must be made through the Police Director or the Chief.
- c. Whenever a written complaint concerning an officer or his actions is to be placed in his personnel file, a copy shall be made available to him, and he shall be given the opportunity to rebut it if he so desires, and he shall be permitted to place said rebuttal in his file. The employee shall be given two (2) weeks from date he initials and dates material to be placed in his file to rebut.
- D. All personal history files will be carefully maintained and safeguarded permanently, and nothing placed in any file shall be removed therefrom.

MILITARY LEAVE

- A. Where any employee is a member of the National Guard, Air National Guard, or a reserve unit of any of the Armed Forces of the United States and is required to engage in field training and to attend meetings, he shall be granted a military leave of absence with pay for the period of such training or meeting. Such paid leave of absence shall not affect his vacation.
- B. When the Officer has been called to active duty or inducted into the military, air or naval forces of the United States, he shall be granted an indefinite leave of absence without pay and his seniority shall continue for the duration of such military service. Such officer must be reinstated without loss of privileges of seniority, provided he receives an honorable discharge and he reports for duty with the Borough within ninety (90) days following his honorable discharge from military service.

PENSION

- A. The employer shall provide pension and retirement benefits to employees covered by this Agreement pursuant to provisions of the statutes and laws of the State of New Jersey.
- B. The employer will pay to the appropriate Police Retirement Fund all amounts which the fund will accept to account for any payments made to employees pursuant to this Agreement.
- c. It is agreed that in the event that the parties have a dispute as to whether a payment should or should not be made to the appropriate police retirement fund, then, and in that event, resolution of the said dispute shall be made by the appropriate fund and the parties to this Agreement agree to be bound thereby.

GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

- A. To provide for the expeditious and mutual satisfactory settlement of grievances arising with respect to complaints occurring under this Agreement, the following procedures shall be used. For the purpose of this Agreement, the term "grievance" means any complaint, or any difference or dispute between the Borough and any employee with respect to the interpretations, application, or violation of any of the provisions of this Agreement or any rule, regulation, procedure or practice.
- B. The procedure for settlement of grievances shall be as follows:

(1) STEP ONE

In the event that any employee covered by this Agreement has a grievance, then within thirty (30) working days the grievance shall be presented in writing to the Police Director or Chief, with a copy going to the Borough Clerk. The Director or Chief shall render a decision within ten (10) working days after the grievance was presented to him.

(2) STEP TWO

If no satisfactory resolution of the grievance is reached at Step One, then within ten (10) working days the grievance shall be presented in writing to the Manager who shall render a decision within ten (10) working days after the grievance was first presented to them.

(3) STEP THREE

If no satisfactory resolution of the grievance is reached at Step Two, then within ten (10) working days the grievance shall be presented to the Borough

council. The council shall render a decision within ten (10) working days after the grievance was first presented to them.

(4) ARBITRATION

- (a) If no satisfactory resolution of the grievance is reached at Step Three then within ten (10) working days the grievance shall be referred to PERC for the selection of an arbitrator to decide the issue or issues. The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding upon the parties.
- (b) The costs for the services of the arbitrator shall be borne equally by the Borough and the Association. Any other expenses, including, but not limited to the presentation of witnesses, shall be paid by the parties incurring same.
- (c) The decision of the arbitrator shall be in writing and shall include the reasons for such decision.

SAVINGS CLAUSE

A. If any provision of this Agreement or any application of this Agreement to any employee, member or group of employees or members is held to be invalid by operation of law, by any Court, administrative body or other tribunal of competent jurisdiction, then the parties agree to reopen negotiations with respect to the impact of such invalid provision consistent with law relating to negotiations and interest arbitration as set forth in N.J.S.A. 34:13a-16 et seg.; however, all other provisions and applications contained herein shall continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected thereby.

OFF DUTY POLICE ACTION

- A. Since all Police Officers are presumed to be subject to duty twenty-four hours per day, the parties agree to the following:
 - Any action taken by a member of the force on his time off, which would have been taken by an Officer on active duty of present or available, shall be considered police action, and the employee shall have the rights and benefits concerning such action as if he were then on active duty. The within clause does not apply to approved secondary employment which may be handled by employees covered by this Agreement.
 - 2. Recognizing that the employer and its residents benefit from the additional protection afforded them by armed off-duty Police Officers, and further recognizing the weighty responsibility and hazards confronting such armed off-duty Police Officers, the employer agrees to pay such employees an additional sum to be added to the regular and periodic payments the employees receive on the following amount: one (\$1.00) Dollar per year for off-duty time.

AMENDMENT OF LAW

A. Any provision of this Agreement requiring State Legislative action to permit its implementation by amendment of law shall not be effective until the appropriate State bodies have acted.

MILEAGE ALLOWANCE

A. Whenever an employee shall be required to use his personal vehicle in any job connected capacity or authorized by the Police Director or Chief, he shall be entitled to an allowance of Fifteen (15¢) cents per mile.

MATERNITY LEAVES

Female Police Officers shall advise the employer in writing of a pregnancy. The rights of a female police officer shall include but not be limited to the following provisions:

- 1. The female police officer shall be permitted to work as a police officer so long as such work is permitted by a doctor's note. The female police officer's assignments shall be at the discretion of the Chief of Police. The doctor shall be a physician of the female police officer's own choosing.
- 2. In addition to the other provisions of this Article, the female police officer shall be permitted to use accumulated sick time, compensatory time off and any other accumulated time benefits which she may have during the period of her pregnancy and the period following childbirth.
- 3. In addition, a female employee with one (1) year or more of service shall be granted, on 30 days written notice, maternity leave without pay for up to six (6) months duration and shall be returned to work without loss of prior seniority, or prior benefits, provided that she notifies the Chief of Police in writing no later than after three (3) months of leave that she intends to return to work.
- 4. The female police officer shall at all times be kept at full benefits and shall be considered as on active duty for all computation purposes.

5. Upon return to active duty status, the female police officer shall be entitled to be placed in the same position which she held before departing on maternity leave.

Male Police Officers shall be permitted to use ten (10) days of accumulated sick time, compensatory time off and any other time benefits following the birth of their child.

When the wearing of a uniform is no longer practical, the employee shall be reassigned to non-uniformed duty and permitted to dress in appropriate civilian attire.

SAFETY AND HEALTH

- A. The employer will comply with all safety and health statutes and other safety and health regulations so as to maintain existing working conditions at a safe level for all employees.
- B. Every employer shall furnish a place of employment which shall be reasonably safe and healthful for employees. Every employer shall install, maintain and use such employee protective devices and safeguards including methods of sanitation and hygiene and where a substantial risk of physical injury is inherent in the nature of a specific work operation shall also with respect to such work operation establish and enforce such work methods as are reasonably necessary to protect the life, health, and safety of employees with due regard for the nature of the work required.

PERSONAL DAYS

A. Each employee shall be entitled to five (5) personal days per year which are cumulative to the next succeeding year pursuant to present practice.

YEARLY CALENDAR

A. Except as otherwise modified by this Agreement the present calendar shall remain in full force and effect as shall the method of selection of days off.

NO WAIVER

- A. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, the failure to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver thereof.
- B. This Agreement is not intended and shall not be construed as a waiver thereof of any right or benefit to which the employees or employer herein are entitled by law.

UNIFORM REGULATIONS

While the parties agree that a full and complete uniform and the use thereof by the employee has an affirmative impact upon an officer's image, it is recognized that the use of the police hat while riding in a patrol vehicle can cause inconvenience and discomfort to the employee. The parties, therefore, agree that an employee may remove his uniform hat while riding in an official patrol vehicle.

POLICE VEHICLES

A. All police vehicles purchased after the execution of this Agreement shall have the standard police package and the employer will make every effort to keep such equipment in good state of repair.

SENIORITY

A. Traditional principles of seniority shall apply to employees covered by this Agreement. Such principles shall apply to lay off, recall and other similar acts. Seniority is defined to mean the accumulated length of service with the Department. Time in service shall not be reduced by time lost due to an absence from his employment for bona fide illness or injury certified by a physician not in excess of one (1) year. Such certification shall be subject to review by the Borough designated physician, if any, or any physician mutually acceptable to the parties.

IN-SERVICE TRAINING

- A. Members of the unit may attend in-service training courses during the calendar year. The determination of which members shall attend and which in-service training courses they shall take, if any, shall be made by the Director or Chief. The Director's determination shall be reasonable and his determination shall be subject to review by the Police Director or Chief.
- B. Each member of the Department attending school pursuant to Section A above, shall be reimbursed for all expenses, which shall include a sum not to exceed Five (\$5.00) Dollars for a meal per day.

JOINT PBA - MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

- A. A committee consisting of the Borough Manager or his designee and a committee representing the PBA shall be established for the purpose of reviewing the administration of the Agreement and to resolve problems that may arise. Said committee will meet when necessary and required. These meetings are not intended to bypass the grievance procedures or to be considered contract negotiation meetings.
- B. The purpose and intent of such meetings is to foster good employment relations through communications between the employer and the PBA on such matters.
 - (1) Discussion of questions arising over the interpretation and application of this Agreement;
 - (2) Disseminating general information of interest to the parties;
 - (3) Giving PBA representatives the opportunity to express their views or to make suggestions on subjects of interest to employees of the bargaining unit;
 - (4) The promotion of education and training;
 - (5) The elimination of waste and the conservation of materials and supplies;
 - (6) The improvement of working conditions, the safeguarding of health and prevention of hazards to life and property and the strengthening of the morale of the employees.

PAST PRACTICE CLAUSE

- A. The parties agree that all benefits, rights, duties, obligations and conditions of employment relating to the status of Borough of Lodi Police Officers, which benefits, rights, duties, obligations, terms and conditions of employment are not specifically set forth in this Agreement, shall be maintained at not less than the highest standards in effect at the time of the commencement of collective bargaining negotiations between the parties leading to the execution of this Agreement.
- B. Unless a contrary intent is expressed in this Agreement, all existing benefits, rights, duties, obligations and conditions of employment applicable to any Police Officer pursuant to any rules, regulations, instruction, directive, memorandum, statute or otherwise shall not be limited, restricted, impaired, removed or abolished.

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

- A. When an officer has worked overtime during any given week, the Superior Officer in charge of that tour shall submit a record of such overtime to the Director's Office which will then submit same to the Treasurer's office for payment to said officer.
- B. <u>Time of Payment</u> Payment for overtime shall, if practicable, be made in the next paycheck following the overtime work.
- c. 1. Upon retirement, or death during employment, each officer shall receive a lump sum cash payment as supplemental compensation for the full amount of earned and unused accumulated sick leave days, up to a maximum of one year (220 working days exclusive of vacation, holidays and personal days), which is credited to him on the effective date of his retirement.
- 2. All persons with an effective hire date after January 1, 1992 shall receive no more than twenty-five (25%) percent of their then current annual salary as a cash payment upon retirement or death during employment as supplemental compensation for the full amount of earned and unused accumulated sick leave days.
- D. The established annual salary shall mean base salary plus, Senior Officer Differential where applicable, plus longevity pay.
- B. Members appointed to the department after July 1st of the year shall be considered to have been appointed as of July 1st of that year for the purpose of determining salary benefits, longevity,

vacations, increments, and all other fringe benefits. This clause in no way effects the seniority rights of a ny member. Seniority rights shall be determined by the actual appointment.

- F. The employer will pay each officer at the end of each two-week period a salary check to represent 1/26 of the Officer's established annual salary. Payment for vacation periods shall be made on the established payday of the week prior to the Officer's starting his vacation.
- G. Hardware items such as hand guns if damaged in the line of duty, holsters, handcuffs and cases, night sticks, safety helmets, badges, and mace, shall be purchased and supplied by the employer and replaced if not in working order or in poor condition.

OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT ACTIVITIES

- A. Officers shall be entitled to engage in any lawful activity and obtain any lawful work while off-duty.
- B. It is understood that the full time Officers will consider their position with the Borough as their primary employment. Any outside employment or activity must not interfere with the Officer's efficiency in his position with the Borough and must not constitute any conflict of interest.
- C. No Officer planning to or engaging in any outside employment or activity during their off-duty hours shall be permitted to wear the regulation uniform without permission of the Police Director or Chief.
- D. All outside employment shall be listed with the Police Director or Chief. The information provided to the Police Director, or Chief, shall include the outside employer's name, address and the Officer's work schedule.

POLICE SERVICES

All requests for services of Police Officers while off duty that may be addressed to the public employer shall be forwarded to the Police Department for posting. The public employer agrees to require a Police Officer on all contracting jobs done within the Borough where there is a road opening involved. Any time there is a road opening or significant street repair as determined by the Chief of Police or his designee, the Employer agrees to require as a condition of the letting of the job that the contractor agreed to provide at least one (1) Police Officer to provide public safety and security at the location of the work site.

The public employer further agrees that all monies received from such contracting work shall be paid through the Employer's payroll process and the law enforcement Officer while so employed shall be treated in all respects as an Employee of the public employer.

TERM OF CONTRACT

The term of this Agreement shall be from July 1, 1993 through June 30, 1996 or until such time as a successor Agreement is executed.

WITNESS:

sorough of Looi:

WITNESS:

PHA LOCAL 26 (Lodi Unit)

67

APPENDIX A BASE PAY

	EFF. 7/1/93	EFF. 1/1/94	EFF. 7/1/94	EFF. 7/1/95
ENTRY				
A) 1ST SIX MONTHS (BASIC POLICE ACADE	19,000 MY)	19,000	20,000	20,000
B) 2ND SIX MONTHS	27,500	27,500	29,000	29,000
STEP 1	39,561	40,748	43,193	46,217
STEP 2	45,590	46,958	49,775	53,259
STEP 3	51,399	52,941	56,117	60,046
SERGEANT	54,515	56,150	59,519	63,686
LIEUTENANT	57,630	59,358	62,920	67,324
CAPTAIN	60,745	62,568	66,322	70,964

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT

The Borough of Lodi and PBA Local 26 have reached agreement with respect to certain pending issues regarding the clothing allowance administration for police officers.

- The Borough agrees to pay \$325.00 for the purchase of leather jackets and \$150.00 towards the purchase of academy uniforms for the seven employees covered by the pending grievance (PERC Docket No.: AR-93-422).
- The Borough agrees to pay for the purchase of new leather jackets for new hires. The Borough reserves the right to choose a vendor for the purchase of said jackets. It will be the option of each member to add to that price out of said member's own money for any upgrades in leather jackets.
- The Borough agrees to supply a complete uniform for all new hires without a dollar value limitation. The complete new employee uniform list shall consist of, but not be limited to, a list of items on Appendix A attached.
- 4. As a part of the settlement in this matter the PBA Local 26 agrees to withdraw the pending grievance (AR-93-422) and will execute all necessary papers to achieve the withdrawal.
- 5. The terms of this memorandum of agreement shall be incorporated in the next written contract between the parties.

BOROUGH OF LODI

LODI POLICEMEN'S BENEVOLENT ASSOCIATION, LOCAL NO. 26

Delegate



Policemen Benevolent Association

Bergen County Local No.26

LODI, NEW JERSEY 07644

The following is the list of a complete uniform;

```
A. Academy uniforms, GREY'S
   2 Long Sleeve Shirts
   2 Pairs of pants
   2 Black ties
   1 Hat
   1 Pair of shoes
B. Duty uniforms,
   2 Long sleeve shirts
   2 Short sleeve shirts
   2 Pair of pants
   2 Blue ties
   1 Hat
   1 Black leatherjacket
                       ( needed in the academy )
   1 Garrison belt
   2 Name tags
                       ( needed in the academy )
   1 Tie clip
                       ( needed in the academy )
   1 Set of collar insgnia
   1 Rain coat
   1 Rain hat
   1 Pair rain boots
   3 Badges
   1 Hat badge
C. Leather gear, ( needed in the academy )
   1 Gun belt
   1 Holster
   1 magazine holder
   1 Pair of handcuffs
   1 Handcuff holder
   4 Belt keepers
   1 PR 24 holder
   1 Radio holder
   1 PR 24
```

